
West Devon Development 
Management and Licensing 
Committee

Title: Agenda
Date: Tuesday, 19th September, 2017

Time: 10.00 am

Venue: Chamber - Kilworthy Park

Full Members: Chairman Cllr Sanders
Vice Chairman Cllr Roberts

Members: Cllr Baldwin
Cllr Cann OBE
Cllr Hockridge
Cllr Mott

Cllr Moyse
Cllr Parker
Cllr Pearce
Cllr Yelland

Interests – 
Declaration and 
Restriction on 
Participation:

Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any 
disclosable pecuniary interest not entered in the Authority's 
register or local non pecuniary interest which they have in any 
item of business on the agenda (subject to the exception for 
sensitive information) and to leave the meeting prior to 
discussion and voting on an item in which they have a 
disclosable pecuniary interest.

Committee 
administrator:

Kathy Trant  Specialist - Democratic Services 01803 861185



Page No

1.  Apologies for Absence 

2.  Declarations of Interest

Members are invited to declare any personal or disclosable pecuniary 
interests, including the nature and extent of such interests they may have 
in any items to be considered at this meeting.

[If Councillors have any questions relating to predetermination, bias or 
interests in items on this Agenda, then please contact the Monitoring 
Officer in advance of the meeting] 

3.  Items Requiring Urgent Attention

To consider those items which, in the opinion of the Chairman, 
should be considered by the Meeting as matters of urgency (if 
any).  

4.  Confirmation of Minutes 1 - 4

Meeting held on 22 August 2017

5.  Planning Performance Indicators & Presentation by Cllr 
Cheadle, the Member of Performance Measures Task & 
Finish Group who is responsible for reviewing the planning 
related indicators 

5 - 10

6.  Planning Applications 11 - 26

1987/17/FUL Hayfield House, Hayfield Road, Exbourne. 
Erection of a 2 storey 3 bedroomed house, a separate 
single garage and parking for 2 vehicles 

To see Letters of Representation and further supplementary 
information relating to any of the planning applications on the 
agenda, please select the following link and enter the relevant 
Reference number: http://westdevon.gov.uk/searchlanding

7.  Planning Appeals Update 27 - 30

http://westdevon.gov.uk/searchlanding


Page No





At a Meeting of the DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT & LICENSING 
COMMITTEE held at the Council Chamber, Council Offices, Kilworthy 
Park, Drake Road, TAVISTOCK on TUESDAY the 22nd day of 
AUGUST 2017 at 10.00am 

 
Present:   Cllr P R Sanders – Chairman 
     
   Cllrs R E Baldwin  Cllr W G Cann OBE 
   Cllr C Mott   Cllr D E Moyse 
   Cllr A Roberts  Cllr J Yelland 
 
Substitutes:  Cllr B Lamb for Cllr D E Moyse 
   Cllr R Cheadle for Cllr T G Pearce 

 
   COP Lead Development Management (PW) 
   Planning Specialist (TF) 
   Solicitor (SN) 

Specialist Democratic Services (KT) 
 

In attendance: Cllr T F Leech  
 
 
*DM&L 13 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies were received from Cllr D E Moyse for whom Cllr B Lamb 
acted as substitute, Cllr T G Pearce for whom Cllr R Cheadle acted as 
substitute and Cllr J Yelland. 

 
 
*DM&L 14 DECLARATION OF INTEREST 

Members were invited to declare any interests in the items of business 
to be considered but none were made. 

 
 
*DM&L 15 CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES 

The Minutes of the Development Management and Licensing Committee 
Meeting held on 27th June 2017 and the Licensing Sub Committee held 
on 27th July 2017 were confirmed and signed by the Chairman as a 
correct record. 

 
 
*DM&L 16 PLANNING PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 

The COP Lead Development Management presented the latest set of 
Performance Indicators and outlined the key information for Members 
consideration.  A Member noted that Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
had appointed a task and finish group to look at performance measure 
across the Council and planning performance indicators would be 
included. 

 
 
*DM&L 17 PLANNING, LISTED BUILDING, TREE PRESERVATION ORDER 

AND ENFORCEMENT REPORTS 
The Committee considered the applications prepared by the 
Development Management Specialists and considered also the 
comments of Town and Parish Councils together with other 



representations received, which were listed within the presented agenda 
reports and summarised below, and RESOLVED: 

 
(a) Application No:  1433/17/VAR Ward: Bridestowe 
 
Site Address: East Bowerland Farm, Okehampton 
  
Application for removal of condition 7 (use restriction) following planning 
consent 00643/2013 (Erection of building over existing sand school for 
equestrian and dog training) 
 
Speakers included: Objector – Mr Chris Wilson:  Supporter – Miss 
Lauren Langman:  Parish Council representative – Cllr Ivor Kaczanow:  
Ward Member – Cllr Mott 

 
RECOMMENDATION:   Conditional Approval 
 
During the debate on this application, the Ward Member proposed an 
amendment to change the days of operation so that public holidays were 
not included.  This amendment was not supported and therefore no vote 
was taken. 

 
COMMITTEE DECISION:  Conditional Approval 
 
Conditions:  
1. Accord with plans 
2. Building for Private equestrian and canine use only 
3. Canine business and holiday lets to be operated by occupiers of 

East Bowerland farm only 
4. Hours of use restriction 
5. No more than 11 dogs using the training arena at any time 
6. No external lighting without consent 
 

 
(b) Application No:  2456/16/FUL Ward: Bridestowe 
 
Site Address: East Bowerland Farm, Okehampton 
  
Extension of existing dog training arena, replacing existing timber 
structure 
 
Speakers included: Supporter – Miss Lauren Langman:  Parish Council 
representative – Cllr Ivor Kaczanow:  Ward Member – Cllr Mott 

 
RECOMMENDATION:   Conditional Approval 
 

 
COMMITTEE DECISION:  Conditional Approval 
 
Conditions:  
1. Time limit 
2. Accordance with plans 
3. Details of internal acoustic cladding and acoustic roof lights to be 

approved 
4. Private equestrian/canine use only 



5. Canine business and holiday lets to be operated by occupiers of 
East Bowerland farm only 
 

6. Doors shown on plan to be installed prior to completion/first use, 
whichever is soonest 

7. Hours of use restriction 
8. Boundary treatments/landscaping to be agreed 

 
 
 
*DM&L 18 PLANNING APPEALS UPDATE 

The Committee received and noted the updated list of Planning Appeals 
including enforcement appeals. 
 
 

(The Meeting terminated at 12.00 noon) 
 

Dated this      
 
 
 
 

______________________ 
Chairman 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 





 

  



 



  



 



 



 



PLANNING APPLICATION REPORT

Case Officer: Graham Lawrence Parish: Exbourne Ward: Exbourne

Application No: 1987/17/FUL

Agent/Applicant:
Mr John Wilde
4 Crestfield Rise
Ivybridge
PL21 9TJ

Applicant:
Ms Mandy Rideout
Hayfield House, 
Hayfield Road
EX20 3RS

Site Address: Hayfield House, Hayfield Road, Exbourne, EX20 3RS

Development: Erection of a 2 storey 3 bedroomed house, a separate single garage 
and parking for 2 vehicles

Reason item is being put before Committee:

Cllr Samuel has requested that this application is determined by Development 
Management and Licensing Committee due to concerns regarding the impact of the 
proposal on heritage and neighbour amenity.



Recommendation: Conditional approval

Conditions:

1. Standard time limit
2. Accord with plans
3. Window, chimney and eaves details
4. Roof specification including P.V. panels and rooflights
5. Window to be obscure glazed
6. Construction management plan
7. Landscaping
8. Stonework sample panel
9. Unexpected contaminated land
10.Removal of Permitted Development Rights
11.Drainage details as submitted

Key issues for consideration:

 Principle of a new dwelling
 Effect on Conservation Area and setting of heritage assets
 Design
 Amenity of surrounding residents
 Access and parking
 Drainage

Site Description:

The site is located within the existing rear garden of and to the north of Hayfield House, 
located on the east side of the lane known as The Tumbles, to the north of Hayfield 
Road. The Tumbles is a narrow unadopted private lane that provides access to six 
properties, including Hayfield House. The ground level rises from Hayfield Road and 
The Tumbles is positioned on higher ground than the application site.

The site is located within the centre of the settlement of Exbourne and the land to the 
south comprises Exbourne Conservation Area. The Conservation Area boundary 
passes through the site. The site is not within a Critical Drainage Area. The site is 
within the Exbourne Settlement Boundary.

In 2015 an application was refused, and the subsequent appeal dismissed, for the 
erection of a single detached dwelling. 

The Proposal:

This is a planning application for the erection of a 2 storey 3 bedroomed house, a 
separate single garage and parking for 2 vehicles. 

The house and garage are set back from The Tumbles and are set down at a lower 
level. Materials are render and sate with wooden joinery. Bin storage is provided 
forward of the principal elevation. 



This submission seeks to address comments made by the Council and Planning 
Inspector. 

Consultations:

 County Highways Authority – Standing advice applies, reaffirm previous 
comments

 Environmental Health Section – No comment but under the previous application 
for the site an unexpected contaminated land condition was requested.

 Parish Council – Object

‘The view of the Parish Council is the proposal doesn’t maintain or enhance the 
character of the conservation area. The scale and massing of the building is 
inappropriate in this space and will result in a poor relationship with Hayfield House 
particularly when extended as per the current approval for the dwelling which is a 
material planning consideration. It is also considered that the design fails to give due 
weight to Hayfield House as an undesignated heritage asset within the conservation 
area.

The positioning, particularly of the first-floor windows, will lead to undue overlooking 
of adjacent gardens resulting in lack of privacy, and adversely affecting the amenity of 
adjoining properties. In addition, it appears that the first-floor windows facing West will 
look directly into the windows of The Tumbles adjacent to the Lane. In the previous 
appeal decision, relating to the site, in paragraph 6, the Planning Inspector noted “I 
had a general sense that the core of the Village is tighter-knit than the area North of 
the appeal site with the existing garden of Hayfield House being the first part of this 
feathering of the edge of the Village.

This space provided by the undeveloped site does not look out of place and 
compliments the rural character of this part of the settlement.” It follows that if this 
development were allowed it would adversely affect the character of the conservation 
area and this part of the village. The Parish has also received representations due to 
the proximity of the development to a hedge line on the Northern boundary due to the 
position of excavation of the garage which would be in contravention to British 
Standard 5827:2012’

Representations:

The application has drawn approximately 13 objections from neighbours and local 
residents. The concerns can be summarised as follows:-

 Applicants do not have a right to access the site via The Tumbles
 Loss of amenity and overbearing impact on neighbours
 Overlooking of 3 The Tumbles and Wheelwrights Cottage
 Loss of light / overshadowing
 Excavation of driveway and garage would kill conifer hedge
 Excavation could undermine The Tumbles track



 The setting of Hayfield House would be spoiled due to loss of garden and 
proximity of the development

 Contrary to Article 8 of the Human Rights Act
 Parking provision is inadequate and no turning is provided
 The Tumbles track would be damaged by development vehicles and services 

disrupted
 Development would be ‘garden grabbing / garden gobbling’
 House is too big for the plot
 Design is poor and ‘suburban’ and does not reflect local character
 Materials proposed are inappropriate
 3D images are misleading
 Solar panels are inappropriate
 Some of land identified by blue line is not owned by the applicants

Relevant Planning History

01110/2015 - Householder application for demolition of single storey extension and 
construction of two storey extension and boundary treatments – Conditional Approval 
May 2016

01108/2015 - Readvertisement (Revised Plans received): Application for new 2 storey 
3 bedroomed dwelling with single storey garage/workshop. Refusal. Appeal dismissed 
August 2016

Please note, the appeal for the new dwelling was dismissed 3 months after the 
granting of the two storey rear extension at Hayfield House. When making his 
assessment, the Inspector would therefore have had regard to this extant permission 
as a material planning consideration. 

Analysis

Principle of Development/Sustainability:

The proposal would be sited within the settlement limits of Exbourne therefore policy 
H28 saved from the 2005 Local Plan applies. This policy states that within defined 
limits residential development will be permitted provided that it is consistent with other 
policies and then it is acceptable in relation to criteria (i) to (vi).

In addition policy H39 addresses proposals for the redevelopment of large single 
residential plots within settlement limits and states that these will be acceptable 
provided the proposal is compatible with the surrounding residential area. Given 
Hayfield House benefits from a substantial sized rear garden this is considered to 
qualify as a ‘large single residential plot’.

Exbourne is a sustainable settlement with a good range of local facilities and relatively 
good connectivity. Policy TTV2 of the draft Joint Local Plan states, ‘The LPAs will 
support development proposals in the Thriving Towns and Villages Policy Area which 
reinforce the sustainable settlement hierarchy and which deliver a prosperous and 
sustainable pattern of development. In addition to the provisions of Policies SPT1 and 



SPT2, specific attributes of rural sustainability to be supported through development 
include: 1. The location of housing where it will enhance or maintain the vitality of rural 
communities.

The principle of residential development on this site is therefore considered acceptable 
subject to consideration of its local setting.

Previous planning refusal and appeal decision:

This application is submitted following a previous refusal, with the subsequent appeal 
dismissed by the Planning Inspectorate. The appeal decision, and associated report, 
is a significant material planning consideration and it is circulated to members within 
the committee agenda. 

Although certain individual comments made by the Inspector can be used, in isolation, 
to form views of the appropriateness of this new proposal, it is essential that the appeal 
decision is read in full, with full reference to both the refused scheme and that now 
before members. 

It is obvious that the Inspector and the Council shared specific concerns about 
elements of the previous proposal, for example, its design and subsequent impact 
upon the Conservation Area. However, officers maintain that the Inspector’s 
comments and decision do not entirely sterilise the future development potential of the 
site, and officers maintain that the principle of development remains acceptable. 
Although it is agreed that the current openness of the site provides a contribution to 
the village, officers are of the opinion that a well-considered dwelling in itself could 
provide its own contribution to the development of Exbourne.  

Design:

Both Hayfield House and the proposed dwelling are considered to maintain an 
acceptable degree of curtilage to avoid overdevelopment of the plot. Officers are 
mindful that the historic core of Exbourne is high density, with in many cases small 
areas of curtilage serving dwellings. Again, the degree of curtilage for both the 
proposed dwelling and Hayfield House was not an issue raised by the Inspector.

The design is contemporary but incorporates features characteristic of the local 
vernacular. A hipped slate roof with chimneys, smooth rendered walls, oak windows 
and traditional eaves all relate well to the character of properties in Exbourne.

Although officers acknowledge the comments made by third parties regarding the solar 
panels and rooflight within the principal roof slope, the addition of solar panels is in 
accordance with policy and these elements are to be set within the roof to minimise 
visibility, with the final roof specification secured through a planning condition.

Although officers are firmly of the opinion that views of the site from Hayfield Road are 
extremely limited, the comments of the Inspector regarding this issue are addressed 
as the location of the dwelling is now set back further into the plot. This setting back 
of the dwelling, away from The Tumbles, ensures that the development will be less 
visible from the public areas around Hayfield Road.



Overall, the previous incongruous and rather utilitarian design response has been 
replaced with a dwelling more traditional in design, and its appearance will not appear 
out of place in form, scale or materials. Important architectural details will be controlled 
by conditions.

Heritage:

The loss of the large garden will change the character of this edge of the Conservation 
Area (CA). As an open space to the rear of the dwelling it does not, however, play a 
very significant role in the way in which Exbourne is perceived as an historic 
settlement. The backdrop to views from Hayfield Road is not a particularly attractive 
one at present and contributes little to the character and appearance of the CA. Views 
from around the application site are not significant to the setting of the Conservation 
Area. Clearly the quality of building and materials for the proposed development will 
need to be demonstrably high, but this can be achieved via the proposed conditions.

Officers acknowledge that the Inspector was of the opinion that the openness of the 
space is a positive characteristic, but officers do not believe that this comment 
sterilises the site nor prohibits any future development within the space. Indeed, it is 
considered that an attractive and well-designed dwelling, with high quality detailing 
and materials, can itself offer a positive contribution to the settlement.

Hayfield House is old but its altered state meant that the listing Inspector decided not 
to give it statutory protection. The effect of the proposal on Hayfield House as a non-
designated heritage asset will be minimal – settings change over time and the 
construction of the modern housing and inappropriate means of enclosure within The 
Tumbles certainly had a significant and negative impact in the 1980’s. The 
development can be seen as part of the ongoing change that all settlements face and 
is considered to have a broadly neutral impact within this context. 

Overall, the proposal is considered to preserve the character and appearance of the 
Conservation Area, and to maintain an acceptable impact upon the setting of non-
designated heritage assets.

Landscape:

Following discussion with officers, the architect has amended plans to include a stone 
wall along the edge of The Tumbles and also along the boundary with Hayfield House. 
This is a positive enhancement of the Conservation Area. Further landscaping details 
will be required by condition.

The effect of the development on the Leylandii hedge on the boundary with 3 The 
Tumbles is something that can be addressed via the landscaping condition and by 
consideration of construction methods. 

However, this hedge is not of specific merit and has no statutory protection; it is not 
within the Conservation Area. It could be removed at any time by the landowner 
without any consent from the Council, and could be replaced by a 2m high fence 
without the need for planning consent. 



Neighbour Amenity:

The previous scheme was considered by the Inspector to maintain an appropriate 
impact on neighbouring dwellings. Although there are many similarities in massing and 
overlooking, this scheme is also assessed on its own individual merits.

The outlook of neighbours will be altered and there is an element of overlooking, 
especially towards Hayfield House and the garden of Wheelwrights Cottage. The 
impact is not of a nature that is unusual in a village location and it is noted that one 
can already look from first floor windows into the neighbouring gardens of Hayfield 
House and Wheelrights. 

The rear elevation of the proposed dwelling will lead to a degree of overlooking from 
first floor windows, but this will be in excess of 10m to the shared boundary with 
Wheelrights and is considered acceptable within this specific context. The overlooking 
from these windows to Wheelrights itself will be at a further distance and at an oblique 
of approximately 90 degrees. 

Overlooking towards the bungalow to the west will be restricted to passing views from 
the stairwell, a single bedroom and an ensuite which will have frosted glass. This 
limited mutual overlooking leads officers to conclude that the impact upon this property 
will be acceptable. Overlooking towards the house to the north is restricted to that from 
a single bedroom window, is partially obscured by the boundary hedge, and broadly 
conforms to that previously found acceptable by the Inspector

There is no dominance, loss of light or overshadowing issue that would mean the 
development would be unacceptable.

Highways/Access:

Officers are satisfied that adequate space for turning is achievable. The access 
arrangements will necessitate reversing to or from the site but officers are conscious 
that this is an unadopted lane with infrequent car movements at low speed. 

The question of the applicant’s rights to use such access as proposed is a civil matter 
between the interested parties and not a reason for planning refusal. If there are civil 
impediments which prohibit motor vehicle use this will need to be addressed by the 
applicant regardless of the outcome of this planning application. The requirement for 
a Construction Management Plan can overcome concerns regarding damage to the 
road surface, lorries, dust, noise etc.

Although the highways authority has only offered standing advice on this specific 
scheme, it previously offered a written response that ‘The Tumbles is a private street, i.e. 
not a publicly maintained highway. The highway authority have previously assessed the 
suitability of the junction of The Tumbles with the public highway at the time the former 
application was submitted and it is confirmed the junction is suitable to accommodate the 
additional traffic generated.

Again, it is noted that the Inspector did not raise access nor highways safety as a reason to 
dismiss the previous appeal on the site. 



The highways officer did not previously request that the road be adopted, and has reaffirmed 
this view. 

Drainage

Although officer’s first preference is for water to be dealt with on site through 
soakaway, the applicant has demonstrated that this is not viable and, instead, has 
proposed attenuation of the water prior to discharge into the public combined sewer. 
South West Water have confirmed directly with the applicant that such a drainage 
solution is acceptable, with the attenuation rate as agreed. 

Land ownership question:

The small roughly triangular piece of land within the blue line adjacent to the garage 
for Hayfield House is in question. As this is not part of the development proposal and 
has no bearing upon delivery of the scheme it is not a matter for the LPA to consider.

Conclusion 

For the reasons outlined above this application is considered acceptable and in 
accordance with the relevant development plan polices. This application is therefore 
recommended for approval subject to appropriate conditions.

This application has been considered in accordance with Section 38 of the Planning 
& Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and with Sections 66 and 72 of the Planning (Listed 
Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990.

Planning Policy

Section 70 of the 1990 Town and Country Planning Act requires that regard be had to 
the development plan, any local finance and any other material considerations. 
Section 38(6) of the 2004 Planning and Compensation Act requires that applications 
are to be determined in accordance with the development plan unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise.

The relevant development plan policies are set out below:

West Devon Borough Council Core Strategy 2011

SP1 – Sustainable Development
SP20 – Promoting High Quality Design

West Devon Borough Council Local Plan Review 2005 (as amended 2011)

BE1 – Conservation Areas
H28 – Settlements within defined limits
H39 – Redevelopment of Single Residential Plots



Emerging Joint Local Plan

The Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local Plan (the JLP) will replace the above 
as the statutory development plan once it is formally adopted.

Annex 1 of the National Planning Policy Framework (the Framework) provides 
guidance on determining the weight in relation to existing and emerging development 
plan policies.

 For current development plan documents, due weight should be given to 
relevant policies according to their degree of consistency with the Framework 
(the closer the policies in the plan to the policies in the Framework, the greater 
the weight that may be given).

 For the JLP, which is an emerging development plan, the weight is to be 
determined by the stage of its preparation, the extent to which there are 
unresolved objections, and its degree of consistency with the Framework.

The JLP is at a relatively advanced stage of preparation. The precise weight to be 
given to policies within the JLP will need to be determined on a case by case basis, 
having regard to all of the material considerations as set out on the analysis above.

PLYMOUTH AND SOUTH WEST DEVON JOINT LOCAL PLAN -: PUBLICATION
(as considered by the Full Councils end Feb/Early March 2017)

TTV2 Delivering sustainable development in the Thriving Towns and Villages Policy 
Area
DEV22 Development affecting the historic environment

NPPF

137

Considerations under Human Rights Act 1998 and Equalities Act 2010

The provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 and Equalities Act 2010 have been 
taken into account in reaching the recommendation contained in this report.

Conditions in full

1.  Standard time limit:

The development to which this permission relates must be begun not later than the 
expiration of three years beginning with the date on which this permission is granted.
Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act, 1990 as 
amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2.  Accord with plans:

The approval relates to the plans and documents supplied, including latest revisions.



3. Window, chimney and eaves details

Prior to their installation full details of the items listed below, including sections at a 
minimum 1:10 or 1:1 scale where appropriate, shall be submitted and agreed in writing 
with the local planning authority:-
a) Windows and doors
b) Chimney
c) Eaves and rainwater goods

The works shall then be carried out and thereafter maintained as agreed.

Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and the character and appearance of the 
conservation area.

4. The roofs of the buildings shall be clad in natural slates, fixed in the traditional 
manner with nails rather than slate hooks.  Prior to installation, a full roofing 
specification including the types and sizes of natural slates to be used, together with 
the type, colour and profile of the ridge tiles, specification of the hips, details of the 
solar panels and rooflight shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The works shall then be carried out and thereafter maintained as 
agreed.

Reason:  To ensure that the development displays good design practice in respect of 
the age and character of the development and to allow the Local Planning Authority to 
assess the details of the scheme to ensure that their character is maintained.

5. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking and re-enacting 
this Order) the ensuite window hereby approved on the south west elevation of the 
building shall be glazed in obscure glass, be fixed closed, and thereafter so 
maintained. 

Reason: To protect the amenity and privacy of residents of adjoining property.

6. Construction Management Plan

Prior to commencement of any part of the construction phases of the development the 
Planning Authority shall have received and approved a Construction Management 
Plan (CMP) including:
(a) the timetable of the works;
(b) daily hours of construction;
(c) any road closure;
(d) hours during which delivery and construction traffic will travel to and from the site, 
with such vehicular movements being restricted to between 08.00am and 6.00pm 
Mondays to Fridays, 9.00am to 1.00pm Saturdays, and no such vehicular movements 
taking place on Sundays and Bank/Public Holidays unless agreed by the Planning 
Authority in advance;
(e) the number and sizes of vehicles visiting the site in connection with the 
development and the frequency of their visits;



(f) the compound/location where all building materials, finished or unfinished products, 
parts, crates, packing materials and waste will be stored during the demolition and 
construction phases;
(g) areas on-site where delivery vehicles and construction traffic will load or unload 
building materials, finished or unfinished products, parts, crates, packing materials and 
waste with confirmation that no construction traffic or delivery vehicles will park on the 
County highway for loading or unloading purposes, unless prior written agreement has 
been given by the Local Planning Authority;
(h) hours during which no construction traffic will be present at the site;
(i) the means of enclosure of the site during construction works; and
(j) details of proposals to promote car sharing amongst construction staff in order to 
limit construction staff vehicles parking off-site
(k) details of wheel washing facilities and obligations
(l) The proposed route of all construction traffic exceeding 7.5 tonnes.

The CMP shall be strictly adhered to during the construction of the new development 
hereby permitted, unless variation is approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety, including preventing inconvenient 
obstruction and delays to public transport and service vehicles and to emergency 
vehicles.

7. Landscaping

The building works shall not be implemented until a landscaping scheme has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, indicating the 
garden landscaping, including all means of enclosure and planting, of the proposed 
development. The scheme submitted shall be fully implemented in the planting season 
following the completion of the development and the plants shall be protected, 
maintained and replaced as necessary for a minimum period of five years following 
the date of the completion of the planting.

Reason: In the interest of visual amenity in order to protect and enhance the amenities 
of the site and locality.

8. Stonework sample panel

Prior to construction a sample panel of each of the stone boundary walls shall be 
prepared on site for inspection and approval by the Local Planning Authority. Not less 
than two weeks notice shall be given to the Local Planning Authority when the sample 
panel is ready for inspection. All external stonework shall be constructed to match the 
approved panel. The stone boundary wall to the development site and to the boundary 
between Hayfield house and The Tumbles shall be fully completed prior to any 
occupation of the approved dwelling.

Reason: To ensure delivery of the proposed enhancement of the locality and of the 
conservation area.

9. Unexpected contaminated land



If, during development, contamination not previously identified is found to be present 
at the site then no further development (unless otherwise agreed in writing with the 
Local Planning Authority) shall be carried out until the developer has submitted, and 
obtained written approval from the Local Planning Authority for, an investigation and 
risk assessment and, where necessary, a remediation strategy and verification plan 
detailing how this unsuspected contamination shall be dealt with.

Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation strategy and 
verification plan and prior to occupation of any part of the permitted development, a 
verification report demonstrating completion of the works set out in the approved 
remediation strategy and the effectiveness of the remediation shall be submitted to 
and approved, in writing, by the local planning authority.
Reason: No site investigation can completely characterise a site. This condition is 
required to ensure that any unexpected contamination that is uncovered during 
remediation or other site works is dealt with appropriately.

10. Removal of Permitted Development Rights

Notwithstanding the provisions of Schedule 2 of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) Order 1995 as amended (or any Order revoking, 
re-enacting or further amending that Order), no development of the types described in 
Schedule 2, Part 1, Classes A-H of the Order, including the erection of extensions, 
porches, garages or car ports, the stationing of huts, fences or other structures shall 
be carried out on the site, other than that hereby permitted, unless the permission in 
writing of the Local Planning Authority is obtained.

Reason: To protect the appearance of the area to ensure adequate space about the 
buildings hereby approved and in the interests of amenity.

11. Drainage details

Surface and foul water drainage shall be carried out in strict accordance with the 
discharge methods as submitted within the planning application. There shall be not 
divergence from the drainage methods hereby approved unless otherwise agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the locality and environment and to ensure 
that the development is adequately drained. 



  

 
 

 
 

 

Appeal Decision 
Site visit made on 3 August 2016 

by Andy Harwood  CMS MSc MRTPI 

an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government 

Decision date: 23 August 2016 

 
Appeal Ref: APP/Q1153/W/16/3151684 

Hayfield House, Hayfield Road, Exbourne, Devon EX20 3RS 

 The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 

against a refusal to grant planning permission. 

 The appeal is made by Mr and Mrs Alan and Mandy Sanders and Rideout against the 

decision of West Devon Borough Council. 

 The application Ref 01108/2015, dated 7 October 2015, was refused by notice dated 

7 April 2016. 

 The development proposed is a new 2 storey, 3 bed family dwelling with single storey 

garage/workshop, 149m2 gross floor plan to land north of Hayfield House within the 

Exbourne development boundary and partially within its conservation area.  Accessed 

off The Tumbles (private road) to the west with 2 car park spaces. 
 

 

Decision 

1. The appeal is dismissed. 

Preliminary Matters 

2. I have taken the appellants’ names as they are set out on the planning 
application forms although the Council has stated them as Mr A Sanders and 

Mrs M Rideout.  I have also taken the description of the proposed development 
from the application form and the Council simplified this to “application for new 

2 storey, 3 bedroomed dwelling with single storey garage/workshop”. 

3. Reference is made within representations to a proposed extension to Hayfield 
House.  This has been shown on one of the submitted plans but was not in 

place at the time of my visit and does not include part of this proposal. 

Main Issues 

4. The main issues are:- 

 The effect of the proposed dwelling on the character and appearance of the 
area.  I will have particular regard to whether the proposal would preserve 

or enhance the character or appearance of the Exbourne Conservation Area 
(CA) as the boundary cuts through the site; and 

 The effect of the proposal upon living conditions of the occupiers of 
neighbouring properties, with particular reference to its scale, form and 
distance from 3 The Tumbles, Hayfield House and Wheelwright Cottage. 



Appeal Decision APP/Q1153/W/16/3151684 
 

 
2 

Reasons 

Character and appearance 

5. The appeal site currently forms part of the rear garden of Hayfield House which 

is a large traditional cottage.  A detached 2 storey dwelling is proposed which 
would be close to the lane known as The Tumbles.  The Tumbles is a narrow 
lane with a rural feel, leading off of Hayfield Road which includes a number of 

other residential properties. 

6. The buildings within the core of the village in the CA generally have a more 

traditional appearance than those to the north of the site although there is still 
a range of styles.  Most of the dwellings have a conventional general form with 
windows and doors within the main elevations facing towards the street and 

chimneys, where included, on the ridges of the roofs next to their side 
elevations.  I had a general sense that the core of the village is tighter knit 

than the area north of the appeal site with the existing garden of Hayfield 
House being the first part of this feathering of the edge of the village.  This 
space provided by the undeveloped site does not look out of place and 

compliments the rural character of this part of the settlement.  The opposite 
side of the lane is more enclosed by the garage near the junction and other 

buildings. 

7. The dwelling at No 3 The Tumbles is set at a much lower level and directly 
north of the appeal site and its roof only is visible from Hayfield Road at the 

junction with The Tumbles. The side of this dwelling is towards the lane as are 
some other side elevations of dwellings on the opposite side of the lane.  From 

Hayfield Road, the lane forms a gap alongside Hayfield House and the existing 
double garage on the opposite side of the lane.  The proposed dwelling would 
be seen through this gap, filling part of it.  This elevation would include an 

unusual arrangement.  A central chimney is more conventionally a feature 
associated with side elevations, as is the case with Hayfield House itself.  

However in this case the chimney is proposed between ground floor and first 
floor windows on a prominent elevation facing towards Hayfield Road.  This 
would be an unusual arrangement within the CA as seen from Hayfield Road.  

The building would also result in significant a loss of space when seen from that 
direction.  This would be harmful to the rural character of the village. 

8. The elevation facing The Tumbles would include no windows at first floor level 
with a large expanse of blank wall being prominent from that direction.  This 
elevation facing The Tumbles would have a brutal, unwelcoming appearance.  

It would tightly enclose this side of the lane which would reduce the existing 
rural feel.  I consider that this would be harmful to the street-scene along The 

Tumbles even though there is some variety in positions of existing dwellings 
relative to the lane. 

9. There is a robust hedge along the rear garden boundary of No 3.  This as well 
as the distance that the proposed dwelling would be off of the boundary would 
reduce the visual impact of the proposal from that direction.  The elevation 

facing towards Wheelwrights Cottage would also look unconventional due to 
the lack of fenestration at first floor level but the space to the boundary would 

help to reduce the visual impact from that direction.  The other recent approval 
of a dwelling further along Tumbles Lane to the north of the site does not make 
this development any more acceptable.  I have considered the proposal on its 

own merits. 



Appeal Decision APP/Q1153/W/16/3151684 
 

 
3 

10. In relation to the first main issue, the proposed dwelling would have a harmful 

impact upon the character and appearance of the area.  This would not 
therefore preserve the character or appearance of the CA.  This would not 

comply with Policies SP1 and SP20 of the West Devon Core Strategy1.  In terms 
of the harm to the CA, it would be limited and less than substantial harm to the 
significance of the designated heritage asset as defined with the National 

Planning Policy Framework (the Framework). 

Living conditions 

11. As I have described above, the proposed dwellings would be offset from the 
boundaries with No 3 The Tumbles and Wheelwrights Cottage which would help 
to limit the impact upon those adjoining occupiers.  The position of the 

proposed dwelling would be closer to the garden of Hayfield House.  However, 
the rear elevation would be approximately in line with the end elevation of 

Hayfield House.  The end of the proposed dwelling would not loom over the 
remaining rear garden of Hayfield House and would not overly enclose that 
adjoining area.  The inclusion of a hipped roof would also assist in retaining 

space at roof level.  I do not consider that the proposal would have an 
overbearing impact on any of these or other adjoining properties. 

12. In relation to the second main issue, the proposal would have an acceptable 
impact upon living conditions of the occupiers of neighbouring properties.  In 
this respect the proposal would comply with Policy H28 of The West Devon 

Local Plan2. 

Other Matters 

13. The Framework seeks to boost significantly the supply of housing.  In this 
respect the proposal would have a small but positive impact.  My conclusion on 
the second main issue is a neutral factor neither weighing in favour or against 

the proposal. 

14. I do not consider that the small amount of positive weight in favour of the 

proposal would be sufficient to provide public benefits to outweigh the less than 
substantial harm to the significance of the CA.  The harm would significantly 
and demonstrably outweigh the small amount of benefit to the housing supply 

of the area.  As such, the proposal would not be a sustainable form of 
development as defined within the Framework. 

Conclusion 

15. For the reasons given above and having considered all other matters raised, I 
conclude that the appeal should be dismissed. 

Andy Harwood 

INSPECTOR 

 

                                       
1 West Devon Borough Council, Local Development Framework Core Strategy Development Plan Document 
(2006 - 2026), adopted April 2011. 
2 West Devon Borough Local Plan Review, adopted March 2005. 





 

 1 

 

 West Devon Borough Council 

 DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT AND LICENSING COMMITTEE 19-Sep-17 
 Appeals Update from 10-Aug-17 to 1-Sep-17 
 

 Ward Bere Ferrers 
 
 APPLICATION NUMBER : 0788/16/OPA APP/Q1153/W/17/3177693 

 APPELLANT NAME: Mr & Mrs T Dawe 
 PROPOSAL : Outline application for erection of 7 dwellings 

 LOCATION : Land Adj. To Station Road Bere Ferrers  

 APPEAL STATUS : Appeal Lodged 

 APPEAL START DATE: 23-August-2017 
  
 APPEAL DECISION: 
  
 APPEAL DECISION DATE: 

 Ward Buckland Monachorum 
 
 APPLICATION NUMBER : 2173/16/FUL APP/Q1153/W/17/3172114 

 APPELLANT NAME: Dr & Mrs Watkins 
 PROPOSAL : Proposed two storey detached dwelling, demolition of existing garage, alterations to  
 existing utility and garden room, new detached double garage and reinstatement of  
 original vehicle entrance 
 LOCATION : Bay Tree House, The Crescent, Crapstone, PL20 7PS 

 APPEAL STATUS : Appeal decided 

 APPEAL START DATE: 23-May-2017 

 APPEAL DECISION: Upheld (Conditional approval) 

 APPEAL DECISION DATE: 22-August-2017 

 Ward Hatherleigh 
 
 APPLICATION NUMBER : 2606/16/HHO APP/Q1153/W/17/3169460 

 APPELLANT NAME: Mr R Cobb 
 PROPOSAL : Householder application for proposed extension and alterations 

 LOCATION : Millers Cottage, Buddle Lane, Hatherleigh, Okehampton, EX20 3HX 

 APPEAL STATUS : Appeal decided 

 APPEAL START DATE: 23-May-2017 

 APPEAL DECISION: Dismissed (Refusal) 

 APPEAL DECISION DATE: 22-August-2017 

 Ward Okehampton South 
 
 APPLICATION NUMBER : 00938/2015 APP/Q1153/W/17/3171503 

 APPELLANT NAME: Mr J Feaver 
 PROPOSAL : Erection of two residential dwellings 
 LOCATION : Land Adjacent To Castleford, Castle Road, Okehampton, Devon, EX20 1DD 

 APPEAL STATUS : Appeal decided 

 APPEAL START DATE: 16-June-2017 

 APPEAL DECISION: Upheld (Conditional approval) 

 APPEAL DECISION DATE: 30-August-2017 

 Ward Tamarside 
 
 APPLICATION NUMBER : 2323/16/OPA APP/Q1153/W/17/3170746 

 APPELLANT NAME: Mrs SJL Hamblin, Mrs ME Guthrie & Mrs AT Bucklow 
 PROPOSAL : Outline application (with some matters reserved) for residential development (Class C3) 
 of up to 20 dwellings with vehicular and pedestrian access to North Road, car parking, 
 associated landscaping and infrastructure, public open space and Accessible Natural 
 Greenspace - External access not reserved 
 LOCATION : Land South Of North Road, Lifton, Devon   

 APPEAL STATUS : Appeal decided 

 APPEAL START DATE: 03-May-2017 

 APPEAL DECISION: Upheld (Conditional approval) 

 APPEAL DECISION DATE: 22-August-2017 

  

 

 



 

 1 

Ward Tavistock North 
 
 APPLICATION NUMBER : 2686/16/FUL APP/Q1153/W/17/3180266 

 APPELLANT NAME: Mr G Caldwell 

 
 PROPOSAL : Residential development for 4No. detached dwellings with integral garages,  
 external parking and new access off Crease Lane 
 LOCATION : Land adjacent to Fernside, Crease Lane, Tavistock, PL19 8EW  

 APPEAL STATUS : Appeal Lodged 

 APPEAL START DATE: 23-August-2017 
  
 APPEAL DECISION: 
  
 APPEAL DECISION DATE: 

 Ward Tavistock South West 
 
 APPLICATION NUMBER : 1535/16/FUL APP/Q1153/W/17/3175414 

 APPELLANT NAME: Mr M Williamson 
 PROPOSAL : Proposed development of 7 apartments 

 LOCATION : The Poplars, Westbridge Industrial Estate, Tavistock, Devon, PL19 8DE 

 APPEAL STATUS : Appeal Lodged 

 APPEAL START DATE: 23-August-2017 
  
 APPEAL DECISION: 
  
 APPEAL DECISION DATE: 



 

 1 

 

 West Devon Borough Council 

 DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT AND LICENSING COMMITTEE 19-Sep-17 
 Appeal Hearings/Public Inquiry from 10-Aug-17  
 

 Ward Buckland Monachorum 
 
 APPLICATION NUMBER : 0147/17/OPA APP/Q1153/W/17/3177360 

 APPELLANT NAME: Mr M Scoot 
 PROPOSAL : Outline application with some matters reserved for development of up to 22no. dwellings 

(including 40% affordable housing), access, parking, landscaping / open space and 
associated infrastructure 

 LOCATION : Development site at SX 501 676, Abbey Meadows, Crapstone 

 APPEAL STATUS : Appeal Lodged 

 APPEAL START DATE: 12-July-2017 

 TYPE OF APPEAL Public inquiry 

 DATE OF APPEAL HEARING OR INQUIRY: 9-January-2018 

 LOCATION OF HEARING/INQ: 
  
 APPEAL DECISION: 
  
 APPEAL DECISION DATE: 

  

Ward Tavistock South West 
 
 APPLICATION NUMBER : 0971/16/FUL APP/Q1153/W/17/3173805 

 APPELLANT NAME: Harding & Sons Ltd 
 PROPOSAL : Change of use from Class B8 (Storage & Distribution) to Class A1 (Retail) with ancillary pet 

grooming and vet services; external alterations to building and site layout including car 
parking amendments; and creation of 2no. customer entrances; and associated works. 

 LOCATION : Unit 8  Plymouth Road Industrial Estate Tavistock   PL19 9QN 

 APPEAL STATUS : Appeal Lodged 

 APPEAL START DATE: 05-July-2017 

 TYPE OF APPEAL Informal hearing 

 DATE OF APPEAL HEARING OR INQUIRY: 13-September-2017 

 LOCATION OF HEARING/INQ: Council Chamber, Kilworthy  
 Park, Tavistock 
  
 APPEAL DECISION: 
  
 APPEAL DECISION DATE: 




	Agenda
	4 Confirmation of Minutes
	5 Planning Performance Indicators & Presentation by Cllr Cheadle, the Member of Performance Measures Task & Finish Group who is responsible for reviewing the planning related indicators
	6 Planning Applications
	Appendix - Appeal

	7 Planning Appeals Update
	Appeal Hearings


